
 - 1 - 

 
MINUTES 

Borough of Ambridge – Workshop Meeting 
Ambridge Municipal Complex 

October 14, 2008 – 7:00 pm 
 
 
I. Call to order 
 

President McCoy called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
II. Roll Call 
 

Present:  Bob Dunn, Orlando Gagliardi, Tina Iorfido Miller, Mike Mikulich, Joe Pucci and 
Gerald C. McCoy 

  
Absent:  Tony Cafarelli  

 
Administration and Staff Present: Mayor Notarianni, Borough Manager/Secretary Kristen 
Denne, Borough Solicitor Rick Start, Borough Engineer Frank Lemmon, Police Lieutenant 
Robert Kuzma, Fire Chief David Drewnowski  
 

III. Invocation 
           
           Ms. Barb Costa, Trinity Episcopal School of Ministry 
 
IV. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
V.  Treasurer’s Report –respectively submitted by Marilyn Sheleheda 
  

Mr. Mikulich read the following report: 
 
  
   
 
 
 

$1,391,923.78 General Fund Bank Account Balance 10/14/2008 4:00 pm. 

$11,179.17 2007-2008 Outstanding Checks    10/14/2008 4:00 p.m. 

$1,380,744.61 Available Balance   10/14/2008  4:00 p.m. 

Other Fund Balances as of  10/14/2008 

$75,411.67  Grants/Special Funds (Insurance Proceeds - Garage Damage)  

$162,341.56  Liquid Fuels Fund 

$5,961.75  Escrow Disbursement Account 

$39,104.26  Recreation Fund 

$332,329.01  Sinking Fund  (FEMA Grant) 

$615,148.25  Total Other Funds Balances (Restricted Use) 

Totals are as follows:                      

Deposits: $200,524.99  
  

Debits:  $139,848.75  

-which include the following:  
   45     Checks $84,128.60   

    1      Payroll (s) $55,720.15   



 - 2 - 

       
VI. Boroughs Bills and Expenses 

 
Mr. Mikulich commented that the Duquesne Light company expenditures were close to 
$14,500.00 a month, maybe we should make sure all lights in the Borough building are off 
when not in use. Mr. McCoy remarked that he aggress with Mr. Mikulich. Mr. McCoy went 
over to the Public Works building and shut off every light in the building.  He feels that council 
consider putting in motion sensors to automatically shut off lights.  Mr. Mikulich agrees that 
would save us some money and we should look into it.  
Motion to pay the bills made by Mr. Dunn, seconded by Mr. Gagliardi. 

 
 

Council Vote  Council Vote 
Mr. Cafarelli Absent  Mr. Mikulich Y 
Mr. Dunn Y  Mr. Pucci Y 
Mr. Gagliardi Y  President McCoy Y 
Ms. Miller Y  Mayor Notarianni  

 
           Passed 6-0. 
 

VII. Items for Discussion 
 

1. Housing Authority Contract. 
Ms. Denne commented that Lieutenant Kuzma, Mr. McCoy and herself have had some 
discussions concerning the price that is proposed from the Housing Authority as opposed to 
regular price for police contracts, we are working at an $18.00 an hr deficit. Looking at it 
for the whole year for about 1250 hrs a year; we are at about a $22,000.00 in a hole for 
Ambridge.  She would like some guidance from council whether or not to try and re-
negotiate with the Housing Authority so we don’t take as much of a loss. She also asked if 
they would run these officers thru the payroll from the Housing Authority, they will not. 
Mr. McCoy asked Ms. Denne if the contract has ever been re-negotiated thru the county, 
Ms. Denne stated that she could not attest to that fact, as it hasn’t been re-negotiated since 
she started here at Ambridge- maybe Lieutenant Kuzma would know better. Lieut. Kuzma 
commented that it’s been the same for as long as he could remember – he’s been doing it 
for 6-7 years and it’s been the same – hasn’t increased at all. Mr. McCoy suggested that 
council give Ms. Denne permission to seek out Mr. DeChellis from the Housing Authority 
to re-negotiate our contract with them because it’s costing us a lot of money. Mr. Mikulich 
asked if/what we charge the school for football games. Lieut. Kuzma commented that we 
charge flat rate $90.00 per event, and $100.00 per football game. Mr. McCoy commented 
that it is different situation between the school and housing authority- separate entity. Lieut. 
Kuzma suggested that it’s not done in the same fashion. The school is doing events, which 
is police presence, and the housing authority is actual patrolling of the properties paid by 
the hour. Mr. McCoy commented that the housing authority is protection.  Mr. Mikulich 
asked if there is a situation or emergency in town, does that officer leave the Housing 
Authority property and assist the police in the situation, in other words while 2 officers are 
on duty in town, we actually have 3 officers and the housing authority is paying for one.  
Lieut. Kuzma commented that while it’s true to some extent, if there is a problem at one of 
the housing authority properties, our officers will go and assist the housing authority officer 
– so they help each other out. Mayor Notarianni commented that it’s been almost month 
and they haven’t’ had any trouble at any of the housing authority properties. Lieut. Kuzma 
commented that there are no dedicated officers because their contract has run out…the 
contract runs fiscal year from October thru September.  Mr. McCoy asked council to give 
Ms. Denne permission to re-negotiate with Mr. DeChellis. Mr. Pucci made the motion, Mr. 
Dunn seconded.  
All in Favor.  Ayes 6. Nays 0.   
Passed 6 ~ 0.  



 - 3 - 

 
2. Pennsylvania  Clean Air Act. 

   Ms. Denne states that she has given Council the new policy for all employees to follow, as 
it is not just for restaurants – it’s all work places. She asks that council put it on the agenda 
for the next meeting. Mr. Mikulich asked when it came into affect.  Ms. Denne commented 
that it was Sept. 23rd.  However, our building has been smoke free but it’s also required for 
all recreational areas also.  Mr. Mikulich asked if that included our park areas & football 
fields. Mr. Denne commented yes.  Lieut. Kuzma commented football fields is school 
property and has been tobacco free for several years. Mr. Mikulich commented that we 
have to comply with the state anyway, and asked where the policy was taken from. Mr. 
Start remarked from the Pa. Website. Mr. Mikulich made the motion, Mr. Gagliardi 
seconded. 

 
 

Council Vote  Council Vote 
Mr. Cafarelli Absent  Mr. Mikulich Y 
Mr. Dunn Y  Mr. Pucci Y 
Mr. Gagliardi Y  President McCoy Y 
Ms. Miller Y  Mayor Notarianni  

 
Passed 6-0. 

 
 

3. Right to Know Act. 
 Ms. Denne suggested that this be moved to the next meeting because Mr. Start brought up 

some issues. Mr. Start suggested that there will be future revisions of regulations, but he 
feels that will not do so before the end of the year. He suggests that Ambridge enact this 
policy at this meeting or the next. This is a policy to comply and make government more 
transparent.  Mr. McCoy is in favor of this and suggests that we pass this at tonight’s 
meeting. Mr. Mikulich asked if there are any provisions or corrections, can we make them 
as they come along. Mr. Start stated that is correct, we won’t have to advertise these; we 
can just make the revisions as needed, no cost factor. Mr. Mikulich made the motion to 
accept, seconded by Mr. Dunn. 

    

Council Vote  Council Vote 
Mr. Cafarelli Absent  Mr. Mikulich Y 
Mr. Dunn Y  Mr. Pucci Y 
Mr. Gagliardi Y  President McCoy Y 
Ms. Miller Y  Mayor Notarianni  

 
    Passed 6 – 0. 
 

4. Triangle Pet Contract. 
    Mr. McCoy states tat while he would like more detail on their repots- not just 3 dogs – he 

feels that they do a good job & it’s essential to approve this contract before we loose this 
company – because this company has been the only company on this in the last 10 years.  
He also commented that there is a gasoline clause that if it escalates over $4.00 a gallon in 
the next 5 years.  Ms. Denne commented that they wanted to escalating dollars, but we set 
it to a fixed dollar and they accepted it. Mr. Gagliardi asked if the gas prices go down, will 
we get it cheaper. Ms. Denne said no. Mr. McCoy commented it won’t go up unless the 
price goes over $4.00 a gallon. Mr. Mikulich asked it won’t fluctuate unless gas goes over 
$4.00 a gallon. Ms. Denne stated that was correct.  



 - 4 - 

    (continued) 
 

Mr. McCoy commented how much safer the streets are now that we don’t have stray dogs 
running around as we did in previous years. Motion made by Mr. Dunn to approve contract 
for Triangle Pet, Mr. Gagliardi seconded. 

 
 

Council Vote  Council Vote 
Mr. Cafarelli Absent  Mr. Mikulich Y 
Mr. Dunn Y  Mr. Pucci Y 
Mr. Gagliardi Y  President McCoy Y 
Ms. Miller Y  Mayor Notarianni  

 
    Passed 6 – 0. 
 
 

5. Refuse Contract. 
             Mr. McCoy stated that Ms. Denne said that we have 3 bids. We will only be opening the 

bids only- not approved until he first of the year because the existing contract is in effect 
until the end of 2008.  

    
Hauler  Multiple Days of the Week One Day of the Week 

Valley Waste    

 2009 $364,194.48 $405,444.00 

 2010 $377,194.48 $419,193.84 

 2011 $390,363.48 $433,296.24 

  $1,131,752.44 $1,257,934.08 

    
Waste 
Management    

 2009 $418,841.28 $418,841.28 

 2010 $439,642.32 $439,642.32 

 2011 $461,853.60 $461,853.60 

  $1,320,337.20 $1,320,337.20 

    

Joseph Brunner     

 2009 $355,106.00 $0.00 

 2010 $369,310.00 $0.00 

 2011 $384,082.00 $0.00 

  $1,108,498.00 $0.00 
 
 

The Solicitor commented that a discount is given if the hauler comes into town on more 
than one day.  Ms. Denne asked the Solicitor to comment on legality of the bid from Jos. 
Brunner, because they did not bid on 2009 -2010 -2011 one day a week pick up. Mr. Start 
stated that obviously the hauler is not interested in bidding on one day a week collection.  
They only want to bid on multiply days.  If you decide to go multiply days, you can then 
compare apples to apples and oranges to oranges.  Ms. Denne asked if there were any 
questions or comments.  Waste Management did per household per year. We have to 
recalculate: 2009 one day a week pick up will be $142.56 per home per year. Mr. Mikulich 
asked how many homes. Ms. Denne commented 2939 is what they bid on. 2010 = $149.64 
per home per year.  2011= $157.20 per home per year.  Multiply days of the week -2009 
=$142.56: 2010=$149.64: 2011=$157.20. Ms. Denne asked council to allow her and Mr. 
Start to review the bids and contracts.  



 - 5 - 

                                           (continued) 
 
Mr. Pucci made the motion to allow Ms. Denne and Mr. Start to review bids and contracts, 
Mr. Mikulich seconded.  

 
 

Council Vote  Council Vote 
Mr. Cafarelli Absent  Mr. Mikulich Y 
Mr. Dunn Y  Mr. Pucci Y 
Mr. Gagliardi Y  President McCoy Y 
Ms. Miller Y  Mayor Notarianni  

 
    Passed 6 – 0. 
 
 

VIII. Citizen’s Participation (citizens are limited to 5 minutes per speaker) 
 
 Corky Mihalic – 728 -24th St.  

Mr. Mihalic asked if the bids include recycling. Yes, was replied.  Mr. Mihalic also 
commented that recently our community took a little slam in the paper about our cleanliness.  
There was a little article in the news papers about Panek park being used by the little football 
team. They have not been cleaning it up. We shouldn’t have to pay our Borough workers 
cleaning it.  We pay to light it up for them, we shouldn’t clean it.  He suggests that we advise 
anyone who uses our parks, if you don’t clean it up, you won’t get to use it. He also asked 
about the housing authority property up 16th Street. We should ask them to clean up the 
hillside rather than throwing trash over the hill.  Mr. McCoy commented that since Ms. 
Denne is going to meet with Mr. DeChellis she can also speak to him concerning this issue. 
 
Ross McCoy 1700 Duss Ave. 
He wanted to thank Ms. Denne who was involved in getting the house on 17th Street torn 
down so quickly because it was a hazard. Ms. Denne commented that she can’t take the credit 
for it; it was the Fire Chief and Marilyn Sheleheda who worked so hard on this. Mr. McCoy 
remarked that he wanted to comment about the good things that happen also.  

 
 No one else wished to speak. 
 
 
IX. Committee Reports. 

 
1. Administration and Finance 

Mr. Mikulich reported that the budget will be coming up shortly and the contract 
with the refuse will be important to fit into next years budge.  
 

2. Public Safety 
Mr. Gagliardi commented on the situation at the school and asked Lieut. Kuzma to 
comment. Lieut. Kuzma stated that the police arrested a couple of kids for assault and 
some other charges and are currently being detained in juvenile detention. The school 
has been having some problems the last week or so, and we’ve arrested several kids 
on minor charges. We have been working with the school on these issues to find the 
underlying problems. The Police Chief was injured in this incident and couldn’t be 
here tonight. Mr. McCoy asked if any “Ambridge” children were involved in this 
incident. Lieut. Kuzma remarked that the two arrested were from Ambridge.  Ms. 
Miller asked the police Dept to step up patrol at the school and will some other 
community officers on the patrols.  
 



 - 6 - 

    (continued) 
 
Lieut. Kuzma commented that there will be Sheriff Deputies besides our regular 
force. Mr. McCoy asked if there are more needed will other communities work with 
us. Lieut. Kuzma commented that the school is being billed for the extra officers and 
should we need more from other communities, they will come.   
 

3. Public Works 
Mr. Cafarelli is absent. Mr. McCoy asked Mr. Dunn if he had anything for Public 
Works.  Mr. Dunn commented that one of the workers that is in the building for 
cleaning, instead of 3 days a week, only clean 2 days a week, so he could be out on 
the road more. It’s now Monday, Wednesday and Friday.  Mr. McCoy asked the 
council to consider taking bids on getting an outside source because it takes one of 
our Public Works guys off the streets. We had to have outside help this summer to 
get all the painting done. Mr. Mikulich asked that the Borough Manager look into the 
cost analyses because it is budge time. Mr. Mikulich made the motion, Mr. Pucci 
seconds it.  
All in Favor. Ayes 6 ~ Nays 0. 
Passes 6 – 0. 
 
After the vote, Mr. Mikulich asked about the situation on Merchant St between 12th 
& 16th streets, a couple of months ago pertaining to the light covers and the sidewalks 
coming apart-some of the bricks are missing, bricks around the planters coming out.  
He wanted to thank Mr. Lemmon on his report, basically everything that Mr. 
Mikulich was talking about; it states that it goes aback to Rocco Bianco who was the 
contractor. Mr. Lemmon states that Rocco Bianco is with Community Development 
who issued the contract, tony Bianno who was the contractor, and the architect was 
Lavone.  We are looking into this matter and it should be of no cost to the Borough, 
they should take care of these problems. Mr. Lemmon concurred under the 
maintenance policy.  
 
Secondly about Public Works, we have two books that tell us everything that we 
want to know about everything in this building, paint, carpet, shades. If we can find 
that book, it will tell us everything, who put it in, how many square footage, how 
much it cost us, what type of desk, chair, whatever.  This room would be split 3 
ways, Borough, Municipal and Water. But our Borough offices would be our 
responsibility.  
 
(Tape turned over.) 
 
Mr. McCoy suggested that we look into getting these carpets cleaned. Mr. McCoy 
asked Ms. Denne to get a price.  
 

4. Recreation  
 Mr. Dunn reports that he is waiting for demolition of the old swimming pool; it will 

be started when the high school is finished.  Mr. McCoy commented about the 
suggestion that Mr. Mihalic had about cleaning up our fields. Mr. McCoy asked Ms. 
Denne to contact the leaders of AYA and ask them to make sure they clean up after 
themselves.  Mr. Pucci mentioned that it’s not only the teams, the children leave the 
water bottles, but people walking their dogs leave the poop. Mr. McCoy remarked 
that there are signs. Mr. Pucci states that if you are going to blame someone, just 
don’t blame the little kids, blame everyone who uses the park. He coaches the little 
kids and he himself picks up the water bottles. Mr. Pucci commented that he sat there 
and watched goes on and it’s the people who walk their dogs. Mr. McCoy 
commented that we respect AYA and we don’t want to point fingers.  Mr. Mikulich 
asked if we should put up more receptacles, maybe up on top.  Mr. McCoy 



 - 7 - 

commented that we can not account for everyone who uses the park, but we can 
account the people we support.  

    (continued) 
Mr. McCoy asked council if doesn’t want a letter to be send.  Mr. Pucci said he 
didn’t care. Mr. Dunn commented that it’s not as bad up there as the newspaper 
reported. Mr. McCoy commented that they will be no letter sent.  

   
 
X. Engineer’s Report 

Mr. Lemmon reports 18th & Pine (AKA North Walnut) is under construction & should be 
done by next week or so. We will be moving onto 6th Street. There are some other streets 
that need some attention from the Borough. He sent Ms. Denne an email. We received 
prices from contractors on 6th Street, and it was a good price. He suggests that we do that 
first part before the AWA does their part which they will address at their meeting next 
week. Mr. McCoy asked if it was from Duss to Glenwood. Mr. Lemmon replied yes.  Mr. 
McCoy suggests to council that we approve replacing that road on a contingency that the 
water authority agrees with us & shares the cost, because that road is deplorable, and we 
get complaints every day. Mr. Mikulich asked what the cost would be, Mr. Lemmon 
stated 180 square yards for approx $9,900.00.  AWA has 111 square yards for about 
approx. $6,105.00.  Mr. Mikulich made the motion and Mr. Pucci seconds the motion.  
 

 
 
 
   
 
     

 
 
 

 
  Passed 6 – 0. 
 
XI. Borough Manager’s Report – Ms. Kristen Denne  

Ms. Denne reports that she has been working with Department heads on their budgets and to 
remind all council members that we meet this Saturday at 9am. Mr. Gagliardi wants to know 
if it’s an all day meeting, and what is meant by all day. Mr. McCoy commented 9am – 4pm.  

 
  
 
XII. Items not included in Agenda. 

Mr. Pucci commented about the Little Bridger’s bonfire on October 31st, if they are in the 
play offs. Mr. Pucci wants to know what has to be done to obtain permission. Chief 
Drewnowski stated that first you need a permit, and asked if it’s the same place the high 
school has it, Mr. Pucci said yes, Mr. Drewnowski said there are some rules: like white lime 
around it and have a fire extinguisher there and there will be a fire truck there.  He’ll issue a 
permit.  

 
Mr. Gagliardi asked about the tennis courts being replaced, are they going to be as big as they 
were previously.  Mr. McCoy said Mr. Mikulich is going to have a meeting to determine this, 
but he heard rumors of what they want to do up there and they are not going to do some of 
these things without council’s permission. Mr. Mikulich asked about the committee, who was 
on it. Mr. McCoy said to look at the minutes; he thought it was Mr. Mikulich, Mr. Cafarelli 
and Mr. Gagliardi. Mr. Gagliardi commented that it should be done the same as it was before 
they started, it was agreed upon with the last council and it’s in the records. Some discussion 
among council members.  Mr. McCoy commented that he believes that it was in writing that 
they were supposed to put it back the same as it was and to fix the rest room area. Ms. Denne 

Council Vote  Council Vote 
Mr. Cafarelli Absent  Mr. Mikulich Y 
Mr. Dunn Y  Mr. Pucci Y 
Mr. Gagliardi Y  President McCoy Y 
Ms. Miller Y  Mayor Notarianni  



 - 8 - 

commented that they want to put the tennis courts and the basketball courts back in, but no 
Bocce Ball courts.  Ms. Denne would also like Mr. Lemmon to be there at that meeting 
because of the condition of the ground. Mr. Mikulich commented that when the Borough 
building was built on this site, the ground had a lot of contaminates in it. The way we got 
around it was because we put down top soil and asphalt or concrete over it. If we would ever 
disturb it, we would be in violation.  When I saw that the school board was doing up there, I 
couldn’t believe it, there could be 10s of millions in fines from the DEP, if we have to go and 
clean that area up. He thinks that a letter should be sent to the school board immediately and 
let them know what the consequences can be and if we have to pay we will sue them to get 
them to pay. Mr. McCoy commented that was a concerned of Mr. Mikulich’s some time ago. 
Mr. Mikulich commented that correct, they can not break that seal. If they broke the seal, 
their in trouble. 
 
Mr. McCoy commented that the Chamber of Commerce has brought back the Soap Box 
Derby to Ambridge, and Tom Patrician found a couple of soap box derby cars that he can 
donate and they can use $200 to fix those cars up and get them ready for the event that they’ll 
have here in Ambridge in April. Mr. Mikulich made the motion to donate $200.00, Mrs. 
Miller seconded the motion  
 
 

Council Vote  Council Vote 
Mr. Cafarelli Absent  Mr. Mikulich Y 
Mr. Dunn Y  Mr. Pucci Y 
Mr. Gagliardi Y  President McCoy Y 
Ms. Miller Y  Mayor Notarianni  

 
    Passed 6 – 0. 
 

 
Mr. Dunn asked if there was anything we can do about covering the salt for this coming 
winter. Ms. Denne remarked that it’ll be talked about in the budget.  Mr. Gagliardi asked 
about the shed for the salt. Ms. Denne remarked that the cost was astronomical price. 

 
 

XIV. Adjournment 
 

Mr. Mikulich moved to adjourn the meeting.  Dunn seconded the motion.  The motion to 
adjourn passed unanimously. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:10 p.m. 

 
 
NEXT COUNCIL MEETING: October 28, 2008 
 
 
 
 


